
It is expected that a Quorum of the Personnel Committee, Board of Public Works, and Common Council will be attending this meeting: (although 
it is not expected that any official action of any of those bodies will be taken) 

"Menasha is committed to its diverse population. Our Non-English speaking population and those with disabilities are invited to contact the 
Menasha City Clerk at 967-3603 24-hours in advance of the meeting for the City to arrange special accommodations." 

CITY OF MENASHA 
BOARD OF APPEALS 

First Floor Conference Rooms 
100 Main Street 

Tuesday, October 10, 2023 
2:30 PM 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PUBLIC HEARING
1. Temporary Use Permit Application – Asher Jacobsen – 216 Water Street (Parcel 

2-00008-00) – Mobile Storage

D. MINUTES TO APPROVE
1. Board of Appeals, 7/14/2023

E. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS
1. Temporary Use Permit Application – Asher Jacobsen – 216 Water Street (Parcel 

2-00008-00) – Mobile Storage

F. ADJOURNMENT







 

 
 

CITY OF MENASHA 
BOARD OF APPEALS 

100 MAIN STREET 
JULY 14, 2023 

MINUTES  
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting called to order by Chairman Galeazzi at 9:05 AM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
PRESENT: Chairman Galeazzi, Member Jungen, Vander Wyst, and Rae-Orthow 
ALSO PRESENT: CDD Schroeder, CA Struve, Clerk Neuman, Tim Jacobson, Sandra 
DaBill-Taylor, and Scott Sheppard 
 

C. PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Temporary Use Permit Application – Staging Area – 1165 Appleton Road (Parcel #6-

00637-00) 
Chairman Galeazzi provided an overview of the Appeal Request to use 1165 Appleton 
Road (Parcel #6-00637-00) as a staging area for WE Energies.  Chairman Galeazzi 
confirmed the hearing was properly noticed in the city’s official newspaper, The Post-
Crescent. 
 

D. MINUTES TO APPROVE 
1. Board of Appeals, 10/25/22 
Moved by Member Jungen seconded by Member Rae-Orthow to approve the minutes. 
Motion carried on voice vote.   
 

E. ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
1. Temporary Use Permit Application – Staging Area – 1165 Appleton Road (Parcel #6-

00637-00) 
 
To advise the Zoning Board of Appeals due to having at least one new Board Member 
appearing for their first meeting, CA Struve provided an overview of the role and powers 
of the Zoning Board of Appeals and commented on the provided reference guides. 
 
CDD Schroeder represented the City of Menasha.  He commented on the public 
hearing/variance request, which if approved could be used for up to a 12-month period.  
MJ Electric is the subcontractor hired by WE Energies for this project.  The subcontractor 
utilized this specific area as a staging location for items used for power line replacement 
along Appleton Road a few years ago on a prior portion of the project.  This prior instance 
was approved because it directly impacted City of Menasha resident homes and 
businesses along that area of Appleton Road.  
 
This spring City staff noticed the unapproved use for the site and communicated with WE 
Energies/MJ Electric to follow-up with an application (submitted to City Hall June 13, 
2023).  CDD Schroeder handed copies of the application materials to Board of Appeals 
members, city staff, and the gallery for the record.  CDD Schroeder explained MJ Electric 
is currently working on two areas in the Fox Valley, with the intention to finish the project 
by October, and assumed using this site for staging, since it was approved in a prior 
circumstance.  Variances (Temporary Use Permit Applications) are required to go in front 
of the Plan Commission, which was done on June 27, 2023; their recommendation was 
to deny the application outdoor storage, since is not permitted and does not collectively 



 
serve the wellbeing of the City of Menasha (as the city’s power supply company is 
Menasha Utilities not WE Energies).   

  
Preliminary matters:  

 
1. Chairman Galeazzi confirmed with Clerk Neuman that all legal notices were met for an 

Appeal to the Zoning Board of Appeals.  
 

2. Questions from Board Members and responses from the parties, along with general 
discussion regarding: 
a. Vacant property use protocol 
b. Recourse from subcontractor if application/variance request is denied 
c. Appeals process procedures (30 days from decision to appeal to circuit court) 
d. Injunction procedures 
e. Landlord letter of support for use of staging (and no objection of surrounding 

businesses possibly effected by staging) 
f. Vacating timeframe if application is deemed denied (reasonable accommodation 

to vacate); MJ Electric/WE Energies were aware of the Plan Commission’s 
preliminary decision on June 27, 2023. 

g. Setting precedent with site usage  
h. Outdoor storage is not permitted use as itself within city district; there is an 

ancillary use for a business (some outdoor storage) with a special use permit 
process, but there are strict guidelines with maintaining properties in a C-1 District 
(including having appropriate screening to shield items on properties in place). 

i. Existing condition of the lot when not in use 
 

Chairman Galeazzi commented the is not an area zoned for commercial to not have outside 
area staging options, so although the applicant is keeping outside storage parameters, the 
applicant was under the impression to ask for forgiveness than permission.  If the 
replacement project is not benefiting the wellbeing of the City of Menasha, she cannot 
support the applicant’s requests to use this area for staging, since it’s not detrimental to city’s 
infrastructure.  The applicant assumed use was permissible use without verifying with City 
staff. 

 
Moved by Member Vander Wyst and seconded by Member Jungen to uphold the Plan       
Commission’s recommendation to deny the Temporary Use Permit Application of MJ Electric 
for the Staging Area at 1165 Appleton Road (Parcel #6-00637-00). 

 Motion carried on roll call 4-0. 
 

F. ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by Member Jungen seconded by Member Rae-Orthow to adjourn at 9:28 AM. 
Motion carried on voice vote. 
 
Valerie Neuman 
City Clerk  
 
 



City of Menasha ● Department of Community Development 

1 

Memorandum 
Date: October 10, 2023 
To: Zoning Board of Appeals 
From: Community Development Department/SS 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Application – 216 Water Street (Parcel #2-00008-00) 

Asher Jacobsen is requesting the 
consideration of a temporary use permit 
pursuant to Section 13-1-150(6) of the City 
Zoning Code, for the consideration for the 
long-term storage of a shipping container 
(mobile storage) at 216 Water Street, 
Menasha, WI (Parcel 2-00008-00). 

The shipping container is currently empty and 
was placed on site this past summer. Per the 
application, the applicant is requesting to 
keep the container at the property through 
August of 2025 to store building materials to 
support the reinvests including siding of 
216 Water Street, 222 Water Street, 
250 Water Street, 2 High Street, 9 High 
Street, and 10 High Street.  

Upon placement, staff did reach out to the 
applicant and noted that the container is in 
violation of Section 13-1-90 of the City Zoning 
Code. Per subsection (3)(a), the use of mobile 
storage in residential zoned districts is strictly 
prohibited. 216 Water Street is zoned R-1 
Single Family. With the exception of 
construction sites, mobile storage is only permitted in the C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, I-1, and I-2 
through an approved permit up to 90 days in a calendar year.  

Section 13-1-150(6) of the municipal code states the Zoning Board of Appeals has the 
following power: “to hear and grant applications for temporary uses, in any district 
provided that such uses are of a temporary nature, do not involve the erection of a 



2 
 

substantial structure and are compatible with the neighboring uses and the City Plan 
Commission has made a review and recommendation.  The permit shall be temporary, 
revocable, subject to any condition required by the Board of Zoning Appeals and shall be 
issued for a period not to exceed twelve (12) months.  Compliance with all other 
provisions of this Chapter shall be required.” 
 
The City Plan Commission met on October 3, 2023, to review the proposed temporary 
use request. While the general direction was in support of the redevelopment of the 
properties, the Commission felt it was not appropriate to occupy this residential 
neighborhood with this type of structure for that extended period of time. The Plan 
Commission recommend the Zoning Board of Appeals deny the Temporary Use Permit 
request, as proposed, finding the use is not compatible with the surrounding 
properties, the intent of the temporary use permit ordinance and the general purpose 
of the overall zoning code to promote the comfort, health, safety, morals, prosperity, 
aesthetics and general welfare of the people of the City of Menasha. 
 







SEC. 13-1-90 MOBILE STORAGE REGULATIONS 
 

SECTION 1: APPLICABILITY AND PURPOSE OF MOBILE STORAGE 
REGULATIONS 
 
(a) Applicability.  This ordinance shall apply to all forms of mobile storage.  The 

standards of this ordinance shall apply to all person, firms, partnerships, 
associations, and corporations owning, occupying, or having control or 
management of any premises located within the limits of the City of Menasha. 

 
(b)  Purpose.  The purpose of this ordinance it to regulate the use of mobile storage 

within the City of Menasha in order to protect the public safety, health, and 
welfare; minimize abundance and size of mobile storage units; preserve property 
values; support and complement land use objectives as set forth in the city’s 
zoning ordinance; and enhance the aesthetic appearance and quality of life within 
the city.  The standards contained herein are intended to achieve the following 
objective: 
(1) Establish a mobile storage permit system to allow some types of mobile 

storage and prohibit mobile storage not expressly permitted by this 
ordinance.  

 (2) Enable the effective use of mobile storage. 
(3) Maintain and improve the image of the city by regulating the proliferation 

of mobile storage. 
(4) Prevent mobile storage that is potentially dangerous to the public due to 

structural deficiencies or disrepair.  
(5) Prevent the placement of mobile storage that will conceal or obstruct 

vision in street right or ways. 
(6) It is the expressed intent of this ordinance to prohibit the use of semi-

tractor trailers or similar mobile equipment as a substitute for permanent 
structures whose purpose is to store goods, equipment, parts, fixtures, 
stock in trade or similar products or materials. 

 
SEC 2: DEFINITIONS 
 
(a) Mobile Storage.  For the purposes of this ordinance, mobile storage will be 

defined as a motor vehicle, trailer, semi-trailer, mobile home, mobile office, or 
other container on wheels or placed on the ground used in the transportation or 
storage of non-hazardous goods, whether finished or unfinished, from which any 
goods are sold, stored, services performed, or other business conducted.  

 
SEC 3: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
(a) The use of mobile storage in residentially zoned districts is strictly prohibited 
 
(b) The use of mobile storage in the C1, C2, C3, C4, I1 and I2 zoning districts shall 

comply with the following requirements: 
(1) A permit is required for each mobile storage unit placed on a lot. 

 (2) No more than two mobile storage units may be placed on a single lot at 
any one time. 

(3) Mobile storage may only be used for the storage of finished goods (i.e. overstock 
items, seasonal merchandise, or equipment), or unfinished goods (i.e. raw materials).  The 



storage of refuse material, or opened containers of paint, oil, gas, or any other hazardous 
material is prohibited.  

(4) Mobile storage shall be located behind the principal structure or otherwise 
located so as to minimize visibility from public streets.   

(5) Mobile storage units shall not encroach upon any yard, setback or 
transitional area required by ordinance.   

(6) Mobile storage units shall not obstruct any drive or other space necessary for 
access by fire apparatus. 

(7) The placement of the mobile storage unit shall not reduce the number of 
parking spaces below the minimum number required for the zoning district 
in which the use is located.    

(8) The provisions of the C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, I-1 and I-2 zoning districts are 
applicable to the use or placement of any mobile storage units.  

  
SEC 4: PERMIT PROCEDURES 
 
(a) Prior to the use or placement of any mobile storage units, a permit 
must be obtained from the Community Development Department.  
(b) A permit(s) for the placement of mobile storage may be issued for a 
total of ninety (90) days per year. 
(c) The permit application shall include the following information: 
 (1) Name of establishment requesting the permit. 
 (2) Name and telephone number of contact person. 
(3) Type of storage unit(s), dimensions of the unit(s), and a copy of 
leasing or rental agreement of the storage unit(s) if applicable.  
(4) A site plan showing the proposed placement of the mobile storage 
unit in relation to the any buildings on the lot, street right-of-ways, and the 
surrounding lots and the zoning of those lots. 
(5) If the mobile storage unit is to have electricity or other utility hook-
up, that information shall be indicated on the site plan. 
(6) The reason for required mobile storage, including what is to be 
stored. 
 
SEC 5: EXCEPTIONS 
 
(a) Construction Sites.  Mobile storage units may be placed on 
construction sites for the time period from when a building permit has been 
issued until the building permit expires or until an occupancy permit is 
granted, whichever comes first.   

(b) Licensed Tractor-Trailers.  Licensed tractor-trailers used in the transport of 
finished goods or raw materials are exempt from the requirement of this ordinance.  

 
SEC 6: UNSAFE AND ILLEGALLY PLACED MOBILE STORAGE 
UNITS 
 
(a) Unsafe Mobile Storage.  Any mobile storage units deemed unsafe 
by the Zoning Administrator may be removed by the City according to the 
process outlined in Section 6 and any costs incurred therefor shall be charges 
against the owner of the property on which the mobile storage unit was 
placed.  
(b) Illegally Placed Mobile Storage.  The Zoning Administrator shall 



order the removal of any mobile storage units found in violation of this 
ordinance according to the process outlined in Section 7.  
 
SEC 7: ENFORCEMENT PROCESS 
 
(a) Enforcement Process.  The Zoning Administrator shall have the 
authority to enforce the provisions of this ordinance and issue orders related 
to and promoting the purposes of this ordinance.  The provisions of this 
ordinance shall be enforced according to the following procedures: 
 (1) Notice of the violation or required action shall be sent by 
certified mail addressed to the property owner and/ or permit holder at the 
last known address. 
 (2) The notice shall describe the violation or required action and 
identify a time frame for the violators to removal, repair, or complete the 
required action. 
 (3) Should the storage unit not be removed or repaired or the 
required action completed within the identified time frame, the Zoning 
Administrator shall have the authority to remove the mobile storage unit, and 
the property owner shall be liable for any and all costs incurred therefor. If 
the property owner fails to pay for such costs, the costs shall be placed as a 
special tax on the property and entered on the tax rolls. 
(b) Penalties.  Failure to comply with the specifications found in this 
ordinance might subject the property owner and/ or permit holder to the 
penalties listed in Sec. 1-1-7.  
(c) Appeal.  Decisions by the Zoning Administrator based in the 
provisions of this ordinance shall be subject to appeal to the Board of 
Appeals.  

  
 

 


	BOA Agenda 10-10-23
	BoA Memo and PH Notice
	BOA 7-14-23 Minutes
	231010 TUP_ZBA_Memo_Asher 216 Water St

